ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
SENATE JUDI Cl ARY STANDI NG COWM TTEE
April 21, 2006
9:39 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Ral ph Seekins, Chair
Senator Charlie Huggins, Vice Chair
Senator Gene Therri aul t

Senator Hollis French

Senator G etchen GQuess

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BILL NO 316
“"An Act anending the Alaska Stranded Gas Devel opnment Act to
elimnate the opportunity for judicial review of the findings
and determ nation of the comm ssioner of revenue on which are
based | egislative review for a proposed contract for paynents in
lieu of taxes and for the other purposes described in that Act;
and providing for an effective date."

HEARD AND HELD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 316

SHORT TITLE: COURT REVI EW OF STRANDED GAS DECI SI ON
SPONSOR(s): JUDI Cl ARY

04/ 13/ 06 (S) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
04/ 13/ 06 (S) JUD

04/ 19/ 06 (S) JUD AT 8:30 AM BUTROVI CH 205
04/ 19/ 06 (S) Heard & Held

04/ 19/ 06 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

04/ 20/ 06 (S) JUD AT 8:30 AM BUTROVI CH 205
04/ 20/ 06 (S) Heard & Held

04/ 20/ 06 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

04/ 21/ 06 (S) JUD AT 9:30 AM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER
Larry Ostrovsky, Assistant Attorney Ceneral
Ol, Gas & Mning Section

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -1- April 21, 2006



Departnent of Law

PO Box 110300

Juneau, AK 99811-0300

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions on SB 316

Steve Porter, Deputy Conm ssioner

Depart ment of Revenue

PO Box 110400

Juneau, AK 99811-0400

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered questions on SB 316

Paul Fuhs, Lobbyi st

Backbone

1635 Sitka St

Anchor age, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Commented on SB 316

Ti m Beck
Fai r banks, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 316

Phi | Kugzruk
Fai r banks, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 316

Jono Stewart
Fai r banks, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 316

St eve Hovenden
Fai r banks, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 316

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR RALPH SEEKINS <called the Senate Judiciary Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 9:39:07 AM Present were Senators
Hollis French, Getchen Guess, Charlie Huggins, and Chair Ral ph
Seeki ns.

SB 316- COURT REVI EW OF STRANDED GAS DECI SI ON

9:39: 33 AM
CHAI R RALPH SEEKI NS announced SB 316 to be up for consideration.

STEVE PORTER, Deputy Conmm ssioner, Departnent of Revenue (DOR)
and LARRY OSTROVSKY, Assistant Attorney GCeneral, Gas & Mning

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 2- April 21, 2006



Section, Departnent of Law (DCL), introduced thenselves for the
record.

SENATOR CHARLIE HUGA NS asked M. Ostrovsky how difficult it
woul d be to conplete the gas contract.

MR. OSTROVSKY responded the agreenment of the contract should
happen in the political process rather than the judicial
process. The DOL anticipates that sonebody wll file an
adm ni strative appeal on the findings and that has the potenti al
of stalling the contract.

SENATOR GRETCHEN GUESS asked M. Ostrovsky and M. Porter
whet her they have had the chance to discuss Senator French’s
proposed anendnent. She said it addresses sone of their
concerns.

MR. OSTROVSKY replied they have |ooked at it but they do not
support it because it does not reflect what is really going on

The anmendnent mght nove the judicial review to the end, but
there is no place for judicial review of a proposal. Wen the
Legi slature amended the Stranded Gas Act (SGA) in 1998 to |eave
arole for itself, it essentially converted what woul d have been
a final agency decision into sonething that is essentially a
proposal to the Legislature and “for that reason, we don’t
support the amendnment,” he expl ai ned.

SENATOR GUESS di sagreed and countered that the Legislature put
itself in the mddle of the contract but not the findings. She
said this is what she has been trying to get at for three days
and the answer is still not clear. She said it seens as if the
bul k of the focus has been on the delay but the other part is
that the Admi nistration seens to be saying that they want it so
that an entity could only take the contract to court wunder
constitutional grounds.

MR. OSTROVSKY said that is correct. The DOL believes it doesn’t
make sense to subject a recommendation to review when it is only
half the story. Wen the Legislature anmended the SGA they
wanted the findings attached when the contract was presented to
t hem

SENATOR QUESS stated that the committee seens unsure of the
intent in 1998. She doubted that was what the Legislature
intended and said the question is what the process should be
now.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 3- April 21, 2006



MR. PORTER said he looks at the requirenments of what the
Department is designed to do and he |ooks and at the final
findings and what is appealable to the courts. Now that the
finding is no longer a final finding, the Department only has
the right to make a recommendation and so there is no action
available to the Departnent. From a process standpoint, it mnakes
sense that sonething appealable in court would be charged upon
an action.

SENATOR HOLLIS FRENCH said the prior day discussion enlightened
them with the understanding of how the SGA works. One notable
thing is the |lateness of when the final fiscal interest finding
is released. He speculated that it was very unlikely that a
court would assune it had the power to stop the Legislature from
working on a contract. He challenged M. Gstrovsky and M.
Porter to find a case where a court ordered the Legislature to
stop a process so that they could reviewit.

He said he was in favor of changing the timng but he disagreed
with the reduction of citizen's right to have access to the
nodel i ng, data and assunption that goes into the Department’s
recommendat i on.

9:54:16 AM
Senator CGene Therriault joined the neeting.

CHAIR SEEKINS said the <conmttee shared Senator French's
concern. He said once the conm ssioner has conpiled all the data
in order to publish the prelimnary findings, the supporting
dat a becomes public.

MR. PORTER said that was correct. There will be a prelimnary

finding that wll look simlar to the final finding. At that
time the Departnment would make econom c nodel s avail able as wel |
as the reports and analysis. The DOR will build all of that into

files and nake it available to the public via the Internet.

9:57: 59 AM
CHAI R SEEKINS asked M. Porter to comment on runors that the
Governor was “hiding the ball” and not disclosing a vast anount

of nodel s and conpeting nunbers from conpeting contracts.

MR. PORTER replied two years ago the price of oil was bel ow $60
a barrel and sonme of the original reports have progressed over
time. Even so, the Departnent should provide every piece of that
data used to consider the best option for the state, he said.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -4- April 21, 2006



CHAIR SEEKINS asked M. Gstrovsky whether he, as Senate
Judiciary Committee chairman, could put M. Porter under oath
and ask him whether he provided all of the docunentation that
woul d ot herwi se be di scoverabl e under court proceedi ngs.

MR, OSTROVSKY i ndicated there would al ways be discovery disputes
but the question really is whether or not the Departnment has to
di scl ose every single piece of data.

CHAI R SEEKI NS asked M. Porter to define what infornmati on would
be consi dered confidenti al .

MR. PORTER replied sonme of the discoverable information would be
available to the legislators but not necessarily the public.

10: 04: 48 AM
CHAIR SEEKINS asked whether there were any internal docunents
t hat woul d be kept confidential.

MR. PORTER advised if the current contract does not nove
forward, there are certain docunments that the producers are not
privy to and if released, would limt the Departnent’s ability
to negotiate future contracts.

CHAIR SEEKINS speculated that would be an area of dispute
regardi ng di scoverabl e docunents.

MR, OSTROVSKY said to sonme degree. The Stranded Gas Act (SGA)
provides a cloak of confidentiality for internal docunents up
until the tinme of the proposed contract so that negotiations can
take place. He informed the committee that the Public Records
Act is a statute that operates very quickly. Once the request is
made, agencies have to respond within 10 working days. The
reason for w thholding any docunments has to be described and if
the party were not satisfied they would appeal to a judge who
would then ask the agency the reason for wthholding the
docunments. Both the SGA and the Public Records Act conpel the
rel ease of the supporting docunents.

10:11: 59 AM

CHAI R SEEKINS read page 19, |ine 25, subsection (f) [version L]
and said basically everything that wuld be considered
di scover abl e docunents woul d becone publi c.

MR. OSTROVSKY said there are statutory exceptions set out in
par agr aphs 1- 3.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 5- April 21, 2006



SENATOR FRENCH asked whether subsection (f) nakes the contract
itself confidential.

MR. OSTROVSKY said, “We believe it would be confidential under
(f).” It is a question of when the contract is conpleted. He
said wuntil the conmm ssioner proposes the contract, it 1is
difficult to say whether it is conplete because it is still
subject to a decision not to present it.

SENATOR FRENCH said it seens like (f) is all about protecting
the strategi zing and assenbling the pieces of the contract.

10: 15: 59 AM

CHAIR SEEKINS said there is no argunent that once the
prelimnary findings are published that the contract and all of
t he supporting docunents becone public.

MR. PORTER agreed. There are three classes of information;
information provided to the public, confidential information
provided to the legislators, and proprietary data from the
i ndustry that the state does not have the right to disclose to
anyone.

10: 18: 53 AM

CHAI R SEEKI NS asserted the intent of the conmttee was to ensure
that the public would have plenty of opportunity to review the
contract and the supporting docunents.

SENATOR FRENCH agreed but expressed concern that t he
Adm nistration mght not disclose all of the specifics of the
contract.

10: 22: 50 AM

TIM BECK, Fairbanks, testified in opposition to the proposed
change to the SGA saying it would be a detrinent to the people
of the State of Alaska. He asserted that Governor Mirkowski’s
Adm nistration was attenpting to thwart the judicial system and
not allow the public access to the gas contract, therefore
elimnating citizens’ rights.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked M. Beck whether he would agree wth
the direction that the conmttee was headed on the bill.

MR. BECK replied he would have to see the bill in its final

form He stated a preference for allowing public review early in
t he contract process.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 6- April 21, 2006



CHAIR SEEKINS suggested that people were taking positions
wi t hout being fully know edgeabl e about the process.

10: 28: 59 AM

SENATOR FRENCH referred to AS 43.82.430(a)(3) and said he
assunmed that is the same final findings and determ nation that
is referred to in (c) and the challenge would conme to that fina
finding and determ nation.

CHAI R SEEKINS asked M. GOstrovsky whether (b) referenced the
prelimnary finding.

MR. OSTROVSKY said that was a “playground for |lawers” and that
there was “anbiguity in AS 43.82.430(b).” The DOL woul d consi der
the material described in subsections (a) and (b) tied because
the final findings and determ nation are what wunderlie the
conclusion that the long-term fiscal interest findings are in
the best interest of the state.

CHAI R SEEKI NS asked whether there were one or two findings that
woul d conme to the Legislature.

MR. OSTROVSKY said there would be one docunent, which would be a
findings and determ nation. The determ nation being that the
contract is in the long-term financial interest to the state.
Ambi guity aside, the court would probably not separate out the
two because the conclusion would be based on t he package.

10: 33: 46 AM
CHAI R SEEKI NS agreed the wordi ng was anbi guous.

SENATOR FRENCH agreed and said it is inportant to clarify what
t he Act says.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked M. Ostrovsky whether it would be
clearer if subsection (c) said, “The comissioner’s fina
findings and determi nation under (a) or (b) of this section are
final agency decisions under this chapter.”

MR. OSTROVSKY said that was a “belt and suspenders approach.”

10: 36: 34 AM
PAUL FUHS, Lobbyist for Backbone, testified regarding concerns
that the organization has on the bill. Backbone is conprised of

approximately thirty citizens of past |egislators and governors
who care about the issue. The organi zation was first fornmed when
BP attenpted to take over the entire North Slope. They have been

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -7- April 21, 2006



quiet until interest of this issue cane up. This is the final
year of the current admnistration and Alaska still does not
have a gas contract, he said.

10: 38: 56 AM

The gas contract is simlar to a royalty oil and gas deal, he
stated. The administration negotiates the deal and brings it to
the Legislature for an up or down vote. The concern is the up or
down vote because there will be no chance for anendnents and so
there will be a lot of pressure involved. He agreed with Senator
Guess’s comments regarding, “why have the Stranded Gas Act?” He
said, “Just pass a law of applicability of gas devel opnent, put
the incentives in and the first people who show up can build the
project,” he said.

10: 43: 22 AM
CHAIR SEEKINS agreed that the gas was stranded but said the
guestion is how to get the gas to nmarket.

SENATOR THERRI AULT said he wasn't sure that Backbone could
guestion whether the gas was stranded since they would not know
t he cost of the devel opment of the project.

10: 45: 35 AM
SENATOR THERRI AULT asked M. Fuhs whether preserving the public
process woul d address Backbone’ s concern.

MR. FUHS said he thought it would. It would nmake nore sense to
have public coment before the Legislature voted on it.

CHAIR SEEKINS stated under the original Act, the challengeable
point was after the final agency determ nations.

10: 52: 14 AM
CHAIR SEEKINS noted there were three nore people signed up to
testify.

PH L KU&ZRUK, Fairbanks, testified in opposition to the bill.
Ol conpanies have a paternalistic attitude toward Al askans and
Al askans should not agree to that, he said. He conpared the
adm nistration’s bill and their holding of the gas contract to a
person buying a house and not allowing his wife to see any of
the details.

10: 56: 29 AM
SENATOR THERRI AULT advi sed M. Kugzruk of M. French’ s anmendnent
t hat woul d preserve the citizen’s right to review the contract.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 8- April 21, 2006



JOMO STEWART of Fairbanks offered to let M. Steve Hovenden
testify in his stead.

MR. HOVENDEN, Fairbanks, testified against the bill. He inforned
the commttee that the bill infuriates people and they do not
agree with elimnating judicial review.

11: 04: 01 AM
CHAI R SEEKINS asked M. Hovenden whether he has followed the
di scussion of the commttee on the bill.

MR. HOVENDEN said he has not followed all of the discussion but
when it conmes down to elimnating public review, people are
getting upset.

CHAI R SEEKINS suggested he get a copy of the Stranded Gas Act
and read the sections dealing with prelimnary findings and
public review The intent of the conmittee is to establish the
point at which a judicial review would take place. The bill is
poorly worded and the commttee is working on that, he stated.

SENATOR THERRI AULT t hanked the witness and advised him that the

original bill would not |ikely pass out of conmttee. He assured
the witness that the Senate Judiciary Conmttee is the commttee
that would cone up with a good bill. He clarified that the bill

came into commttee as a request of Governor Frank Murkowski’s
adm ni strati on.

11:12: 20 AM
CHAI R SEEKINS held SB 316 in conmttee and recessed the neeting
until 9:30 AM Saturday, April 22, 2006.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 9- April 21, 2006



